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INTRODUGTION,

In presenting this Report to the public, we - do it, not for the par.

- pose of gratifying the morbid tastes which the ignorant and sypersti»

" tious always have for whatever is.marvel:us or unaccountixble‘,"!ior“for

the purpose of incréasing the excitement that has been already cr?ated ’
Ly the indefinite and exag, erated rumors in regard to this m}stenouq A

_affair.  Wedo it for the purpose of pl_acmg before the world the nature”’
- of that excitement,—the causes that have led to it, and the facts upon

which it is founded. - We do it for the purpose of showing that, at
least some degree of credit is’ due to the origin of these statements,

. and that they are not wholly unfounded and untrue. We have spent

several days in thrt pl.ce, for the putpose of investigating this strange

affair, and if possible to solve the inystery. During that time, we had
un opportuaity to converse with scores of the most respectable citi-

zens of that place, who had tl]emselvcé ‘spent no little time in endeave

oring to satisfy their own minds as to the cause of these noises.. They

had all hearl them at different times. during the past two weeks, and

manifested a strong desire that the truth shoald be made known,—that

the noises should be accounted for as the eff:ct of some natural causes.

'They appeared to be reluctant to believe that it was a supernatural

manifestation.

But whether it be owing to supernatural means or not, “will proba-
bly be developad intime. " It may be the result of trickery, or fear,
or superstition, orall combined. Ifit is the first,—if the spitits of the
injured dead are permitted to return to carth and haunt the theatre of
their wrongs, and harrass the minds of thesz who have been guilty of
these wrongg, or for the purpose of reven]';ing‘daxk and atrecious erimen
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‘that would otherwise go unpunished, we only have a confirmation of
the truth that, ¢ murder will out,> however carefully it'may be con-
cealed. Butifit be the result of thelast, and this great excitement
has been caused by human agency,—if any one has been able thus to
deceive a large, intelligent and candid . community for such a length
of time as this has been carried on, it certainly surpasses any thing-
that has ever occurred in this country, or any other.

One individual may 'easily be made the dupe of appearances aad
sounds, which to him are unaccountable; but when hundreds of intel-.
Jigent people come up gnd certify, as in this case, their statements-are
entitled to our confi"ence. They all unite in saying that they have
heard these noiges, af different times, in this house ; that they have

" made a long and thorongh investign{iou in.order to.ascertain the cause,.
but are wholly unable to gain any satisfactory information,—that in:
their opinioa it cannot be owing to chance, or produced by any humaw
being through the agency of ventrilognism or deceptive sounds ; andi
‘We are bound, by the confidence- which we all have in each other in
onr worldly transactions, to place some degree of reliance in their rep.

.

resentaiions.

‘We cannot believe that all have combined together o create thig
great excitement, by circulating stories and making statements “hu.]‘
have no foundation in truth. How, then, shall we acgount for i it
Shall we subject ourselves to the imputation of being superstitious'? 1'
of being believers in ¢ haunted houes”’ and ghostly appearances ?
Future developments may, and probably wxll clear up the mystvry
Ihat now hangs over this affair. But let thosc who ridicule the cxcile-

" aent that has been created, and luugh at those who, after a tlwrmlgh ine.
estigvion, have been driven to the conclusion that this is a supernatur al

- @Ppearance, ~let them step forward and solve this mystery, if they can.
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MYSTERIOUS NOISES

IIEARD IN THE HOUSE OF JOHN D. FOX, IN HYDES-
VILLE, [TOWN OF ARCADIA,] NEAR NLWARK,
WAYNE C()UNTY, N. Y.

The following statements were made by the different persons whose
names are signed to them, and taken down in writing as they made
them ¢ after which they were careﬁilly read to them, and signed by
them.  They comprise buta small number of those who heard these
noises, or have bren knowing to these transactions ; but they are

dermed sufficient to szme“y the public mind in recard 1o their truthe
fuluess

C’f;rt-zf/icaz'e of Mrs. Margaret Foz,

WItE OF JOHN D. FOX, THE PRESENT OCCUPANT Of THE HOUSR. |

We moved into this house on the 11ti December, 1847, and
have resilded here ever since. We formerly resided in the city
of Rochester, We first heard this noise about a fortnight ago.
It sounded iike some one knocking in the east bed-room, on the
flo 'r ; sometimes it sounded as if the chair moved on the floor ;
we could hardly tell where it was. This was in the evening,
just after we had gone to bed. The whole family slept in that
roum together, and all heard the noise. There was four of our
fanily, and sometimes five. The first night that we heard the
rapjiing, we allgot up and lit a candle ; and searched all over
the house. 'The noise rontinued while we were hunting, and
was heard near the same, place all the time. It was not very
loul, yet it produced a jar of the bedsteads and chairs, that could
be felt by placing our hands on the chair. or while we werein
bed. It was a feeling of a-tremulous motion, more than a
sudlen jar. 1tseemed as if we could feel it jar while we were
standing on the floor. It continued this night until we went
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to sleep. I didmot go fo sleep until nearly 12 o’clock. - The
noise continued to be heard every night. .

On Friday night, the 31st of March, it was heard as usual,
and, we then for the fifst time called in the " neighbors. Up to
this time we had never heard it in the day time, or at least did
not notice it at all.

On Friday mght we concluded to go to bed earlv, and not It
it disturb us; if it came, we thought we would not mind. ity bt
try and get a good night's rest. ” My husband was here on all
these occasions, heard the noise and helped search. It was
very early when we went to bed on this night ; hardly dark. —
‘We went to bed s0 early, because we.had been broken so much
of our rest that T was almost sick.

My husband had not gone to bed when we ﬁrst heard the
noise on this evening. I had just laid down. It commenc.ed
as usual. Tknew it from all other noisesT had ever heard in
the house. The girls, who sleptin the other bed in the reo n,
heard the noise, and tried to make a similar noise by snappirg
their fingers. The youngest girl is about 12 yeats old ;-she is
the one who made her hand go. As fast as she made the noise
with her hands or fingers, the sound was fullowed up in the rooni.
It did not sound any different at that time, only it made the
same number of noires that the girl did. When she stopp-d,

- the ‘sound itself stopped for a short time,

~+The othec girl, who is in her 15th year, then spoke in spurt
and-gaid,. “ Now do-this just as T do. Count one, two, thive,
four,”- &c., strik'ng one band in the cther at the same tine.
The blows which she made were repeated as before. It appeur-
ed to answer her by repeating every blow that she made. She
only did so once. She then began to be startled ; and then I
spoke and said to the noise, “Count ten,” and it made ten
strokes or noises. Then I asked the ages of iy diflerent cliil-
dren successively, and it gave a number of raps, .corresponding
to the ages of my children.

I then asked if it was a human being that was making the
noise ? and if it was, to manifest it by the same noise. Th e
wag no noise, I'then asked if it was 2 spirit ? and if it wae, to

%



. manifest it by two sounds. I heard two sounds as soon as the

worils were spoken. I then asked, if it was an injured spiit ?

“to give me the sound, and [ heard the rapping distinctly. I
" then asked if it was injured in this house ? and it manifested it
by the noise. If the person was living that injured it ? and got

the same answer. I then ascertained, by the same method that
its remains were buried under the dwelling, and how old1t was,
When I asked how many years-old it was ? it rapped 31 times ;
that it wasa male; thet it had left a family of five childfer-; that
it had two sons and three daughters, all liviog. I fxsked if it
lefta wife? andit rapped. Ifits wife was then living ? no
rapping; if she was dead? and the rapping was distinc:ly heard

" how long she had been dead 7 and it rapped twice.

About this time T asked, will this noise continue if .I call in

" my neighbors, that they may hear it too? It answered me by

the usual token of rapping. By husband went and called Mrs.
Redfisld, our next door neighbor. Sheis a very candid woman.
The girls were then sitting up in bed, somewhat terrificd and
clinging to each other. I was as calm, I think, as 1.am now.

Mrs. Redfield came immediately. This was about half past
seven o’clock. * She came in, thinking to joke and laugh at the
children ; but when she came, she sce that we were all amazed
like, and that there was something in it.. I then asked a few
questiuns', and they were answered as before ; and she was sat-
isfied that there was something strange about it. Tt told her
age exactly.  She would then call her husband, and he came ;
and the same questions were asked over again, and the answers
were the same as before. It was then asked how long it had
been injured ? and the sound was repeated four times at regular
intervals, and then, after a short pause, one more; and the same
was repeated every time the same question was asked. ~

Then Mr, Redficid called in Mr. Duesler anid wife, and seve-
ral others. A great many questions were asked over, and the
same answers given as before. Mr. Duesler then called in Mr.
and Mrs. Hyde; they came, and also Br. and Mrs. Jewell,
Mr. Duesler asked many questions and got the answers.

I then named over all the neighbors that I could think of; and

-
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asked if any of them had injured.it, and got no answer. Then
Mr. Duesler asked it some.questions, the same as I had, and got
the same answers. He asked if it was murdered? and it an-
swered in the usual way ; and if the murderer could be brought
to justice 7. and there was no sound: and then, if he could be
punished by the law ? and there was no rapping. He then ask- '
ed, “if this murderer cannot be punished by the law, mamfest
it by the noise ?”” and the noise-was repeated. . :

In the same way Mr. Duesler ascertained that it was mnrder—
ed in the bed room, abont five years ago, and’ _that the murder
was committed bya Mr, —. , on a Tuesday night, at
12 o’clock ; that it was murdered by baving its throat cut, with
a butcher knife ; that the body did not remain in the room next
day, but that it was taken down cellar, and that it was not
bu:ied until the next night. that it was not taken down through
the outside door, but through the buttery, down the stairway ;
that it was buried ten feet below the surface of the ground.

‘Tt was then asked if money was the object of the murder ?
and the rapping commenced. IIuw much money was obtained ?
was it one hundred dollars 7 twg bundred ? three hundred ? four
hundred? No nrises Five hundred ? and the usual rapping
was heard., We were all in the bed-room at that time.

Macy called in that right, who were out fishing in the creek,
and they all heard the same noise. The same questions were
frequently repeated as others came in, and the same answers
were obtained. Some of them staid bere all night. T and my
family all leit the house but my husband. I went to Mrs. Red-
field’s and staid all night: my children staid at some of the oth-
er neighbors. My husband and Mr. Redficld staid in the house
all that night.

“On the next day the house was filled to overflowing all day.
This was on Saturday. There was no sound heard through the
day: but in the cvening the noise commenced again. Some
said that there were three hundred people present at this time.
They appointed a committee, and many questions were asked.
I did not know much what was done that night, only by hear-

say, as I wenu to Mr.m stay all night.
) 4
.
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On Sunday morning, the 2nd day of April, the noise com-
menced again, and wes heard throughout the day by all who
came here. On Saturday night they commenced digging in.the
cellar, and dug until they came to water, and then gave it up,
The noise was not heard on Sunday evening, nor during the

night. Stephen B. Smith and wife and David S. Fox and wilc,
slept in the room this night. 1 have heard nothing since that
time, until yesterday. In the forcnoon of )esterd'\v there
were scveral questmne answered in the usual way, by rapping.
1 have heard the noise several times to-day.

I am not a believer in haunted houses or supernatural appear-
ances. I am very sorry that there has been so miuch excite-
ment about it. It has been a great deal of trouble to us. [t
was our misfortune to live here at this time ; but I am willing
and anxious that: the truth should be known, and that a true
statement should be made. I cannot account for these noises;
all that I know is, that they have been heard repeatedly, as I
have stated. T have heard this- rapping again this (Tuesday)
morning, April 4. My children also heard it. .

T certify that the above statement has been read to me; and
that thesame is true ; and that I should be willing to take my
cath that it was so, if necessary. (Signed,)

April 11th, 1848, MARGARET FOX.

Certificate of Mr. John D. Foz.

I have heard the above statement of my wife, MarcarRET
Fox, and hereby certify that the same is true, in all its partic-
ulars. T heard the same rapping which she has spoken of, in
answer to the questions, as stated by her. 'T'here have been
a grcat many questions besides those asked, and answered in
the same way. Some have been asked over a great many times,
and they have always received the saine answer; there never
has been any contradiction whatever, ,

I do not know of any way to account for these noises, as being
caused by any natural ineans. We have searched in every nook
and corner in and about the house, at different times, to ascer-
tain if possible whether any thing or any body was secreted
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there, that conld make the noise, and have never been able to
find any thing which explained the mystery. It has'cavsed a
great deal of trouble and anxiety. -Hundreds have visited the
house, so that it is impossible for us'to a(tend to-our daily oc-
‘cupations; and I hope that whether caused by natural or super-
natural means, wiil be ascertiined soon. The digging in.the'
cellar will be resumed as soon as the water settles ; and ‘then
it can be ascertamned whether there are any indicrtions of a
body ever having been buried there ; and if there are, I shall
have no doabt but what this js a eupematural appearance*’
* Tam willing to inake Lhmstatemontb which I bave made abont
this matter, under oath,’if you wish to have me do so. The rap-
ping has been heard again to-day in answer to the questines.
April 11th, 1848, (Signed,)-  JOHN D. FOX.

Statement of Win. Duesler. of Arcadia.. .
Ilive in this place. T moved from Cayuga county here, last
October. - T live within a few rods of the house in which these
‘noises have beed heard. The first I heard any thing about
them was, a week ago last Friday evening, (31st day of March.)
Mrs. Redfield came over to my honse to get my wife to go
over to Mr. Fox’s. Mrs. R. appeared to be very much agita-
ted. My wife wanted I should go over with them, and I accer-
dingly went. When she told us what she wanted us to go over
there for, I laughed at her ; and ridiculed the idep that there
was any thing mysteriousin it. I told her it wasall nonsense,
and that we would find out the cause of the noise, and that 1t
could easily ke accounted for. This was about 9 o’clock in the
.evening. There were some 12 or 14 persens there when T got
theie. Some were so [rightened that they did not want to go
into the room. I wentinto the room and sat down on the bed.
Mr, Fox asked a question, and T heard the rapping which they
had spoken of, distinctly. T felt the belstead jar when the
sound was produced. : _
Mrs, Fox then asked if it would answer my questions, il Task-
edany ? and if so, rap. It then rapped three times. I then asked,
if it was an injured spirit? and it rapped. - I asked if it had
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, conie to hurt any one who was then present ? and it did not rap.
I then reversed the question, and it rapped. I asked if Tor my
father had injured it? (as we bad formerly lived in the house,)
and there was no novise. If we have not injured you, wanifest

"it by rapping, and we all heard three distinct raps, I then
asked if such ai.d such a one had injured it? (naming over seve-
ral families who had furerly lived in the house,) and there was
no noise., Upon. asking the negative of these questions, the
‘rapping was heard. I then asked if Mr. — (naming a person
who had formerly lived in the house,) had injured it ? and if so,
manifest it by rapping, and it made three knocks louder than com-

mon and at the same time the bedstead jarred more than it had |

done before. I then inquiredif it was murdered for money, and the
knocking was heard. T then requested it to .rap when I m=n-
tioned the sum of money for which it was murdered. I then
asked if it was one bundred ? two, three or four? and when 1
came to five hundred, the rapping was heard. All in the room
said they heard it distinctly. I then asked the question, if it
was five hundred dollars ? and the rapping was heard.

After that I went over and got ArTEMas W, HypE: to come
over.  Hecame over. I then asked over nearly the same

. questions as before, and got the same answers. Mr. Redfield
went after David Jewell and wife, and Mrs. Hyde also came, Af-
ter they came in, I asked the same questions over again, and got
the same answers. ’

Then I asked the question, how it was murdered. I asked if
it was murdered by being struck on the head, and there was no
noise. I then reversed the question, and the rapping was
‘heard. Then I asked if 1t was stabbed in the side'? and there
was no answer ; upon asking the negative of this, the rapping
was heard, It usually rapped three times in answer to iy
questions. I then asked if it had its throat cut ? and 1t rapped
as usual. "Then, if it was with abutcher knife ? and the rapping
was heard. In the same way it was ascertained that it was
asleep at the time, but was awakened when the knife entcred the

_throat; that it struggled; and made some noise and resistance.
Then I asked it if there was any one in the house at the t:me
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but him ? and it did not rap. I.then asked if they two were
alone? and the rapping was heard. I then asked. if Lucretia
Pulver woried there at the time ? and it answered by ‘rapping;
if she had gone away that night ? and if Mrs. was gone
away also ? and the rapping was renewed each time. "

There was no rapping heard only when we asked questions.—
I then asked if any one in Hydesville knew of the murder.at the
time, except ? and it rapped. - “Then.I asked about a num-
ber of persons, if they knew it.?. and there way.no rap, until I.
came to Mrs. , and when I mentioned her name the rapping
was heard ; then if any one but —— and wife knew of it? and
I got no rap,—then if they were all that knew of the murder ?
and it rapped. I asked if the body wa= put in the cellar? and it
rapped. I then asked if it was buried in the different parts of
the cellar ? and to all my questions there was no rapping, until
I asked if it was near the eenter ? aud the rapping was heard.

Charles Redfield then took a candle and went down cellar.—
I told him to place himself in different parts of the cellar, and
as he did so, I asked the question, if a person was over the place
where it was buried? and I got no answer, until he got overa
certain placein the ccllar, when it rapped. He then stepped
one side, and when I asked the qucstion, there was no noise.— .
This we repcated several times, and we found that whenever he
stood over this one place. the rapping was heard, and whenever
he moved away from that place, there was no raoping in answer
to my questions.  Mr. Redfield said that he could hear the noise
himself,

I then asked, which way it was carried down cellar ; if round
through the outs‘de cellar door ? and there was no rapping :—
then if it was carried down through the buttery, by the inside
stairway ? and the rapping was heard.

I then asked it to rap iny age ? the number of years of ny age.
It rapped 30 times. Thisis my age, and I do not think thatany
one about here knows my age, but myseif and my own family,

T then told it to rap my wife's age ? and it rapped 30 times,

which is her exact age : scveral of us counted it at the time.—
I then asked it to rap' A, W. Hyde's age ? and it rapped 32,
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which he saysis his.age : he was there at the time, and count-ed:
it with the rest of us :—then Mrs. A. W. Hyde's age ? and it

rapped 31, which she said was her age : she was also there at
the time. I then continued to ask it to rap the ages of different
persous, (naming them,) in the room ? and it did so correctly,
as they all said.

I then asked the number of children in the different families
in the neighborhood7 and it told them correctly in the usual
way, by rapping. ~Also, the namber of deaths that had taken

place in these families? and it told correctly. I then asked it

to rap its.own age ? and it rapped 31 times distinctly. I then
asked it if it left a family ? and it rapped. I then asked it to

rap the number of children which it had ? It knocked five times;

then the namber of girls? and it rapped three times; then the
number of boys ? and it rasped twice. Before this [ had ask-
ed if it was a man ? and it answered by rapping, that it was:—
if it was a pedler ? and i* rapped

I then asked in regard to the time that it was murdered, and
in the usual way, by asking the different days of the week, and
1hé different.hours of the day ;—that it was murdered on a T'ues-
day night, about 12 o'clock. The rapping was heard only when

this particular time was mentioned. When it was asked 1f it .

was murdered on a Wednesday or Thursday or Friday night,
.&e.? there was no rapping. I asked if it carried any trunk?
‘md it rapped that it did.” Then how many ? T rapped once.
“Ip the same way we ascertained that it had goods in its trunk,

a.xd At e took them when he murdered him ; and that he
had a pack of goods besides. )

1 asked it its wife was living ? and it did not rap ;—if she was
dead 7 and jt rapped. I then asked it to rap the number of years
its wite had been dead ? and it rapped twice. In the same way
I ascertained that its children were now all living ;—that they
lived in thisstate,—~and after asking if in such and such a coun-
ty, (naming over the different counties,) at last when I asked if

“they lived in Orl2ans county ? the rapping was heard, and at no

other time. This was tued over several times, and the 1esult
was always the same, .

~
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T then tried to ascertain the first letters of its name, by cal-
ling over,the different letters of the alphabet. 1 commenced
with A, and asked if that was the initial of its first name? there
was no rapping. When I came to C, the rapping was heard,
and at no other letter in the alphabet. Ithea asked in the sawms,
way, in regard to the initial of its sir-name ; and whenI asked’
if it was B 1 the rapping comnenced. We then tried al. the
other letters, but could get no answer by the usual rapping. I
then asked if we could find out the whole nime.by reading over.
allthe letters of the alphabet? and there was no rapping. I
then reversed the question, and the rapping was heard. -1 ask-
ed if the murlerer would be punished by the law of the land for
committing this murder ? there was no knocking. - I then re-

_versed the question, and the knocking was heard. 1 then ask-
ed the rcason ? and after asking a great many diffsrent questions
in regard to1t, to which I got no answer, I at lust asked if it
was because there was no witnesses of the murder ? and it rap-
ped. Lasked if the murderer wonld be punished hereafter ? the
rapping was heard quite loud. T then asked if there was pun-
ishment after death? and it answered, by rapping, that there
was. Ithen asked if it would rap on Saturday night 7 the knock-
ing was heard in answer,—and also that it would continue to
Tap at iimes until its bones were found, and then it would rap
no more.

There were a good many more q 'estions asked on that night,
by myself and others; which I do not now remember. They
were all answered readily in the same way. I staid in the house
until about 12 v'clock, and then came home. Mr. RcduelJ and
Mr. Fox staid in the house that night,

Saturday night, I went over again, about 7 o’clock. The
houase was full of people when T got there; they said it bhad been
rapping some time. I went into.the room. It was rapping in
answer to questions when I went in. I went to asking ques-
tions, and asked over the same ones that I did the night befoxe
and it answered me the same as it did then. I also asked diffor.
ent questions, and it answered them. Some of those in the room
wanted me to go out and let somz one else ask the questions
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1 did so, and came home. There were as many aa 300 people

" in and arnund the house at this time, I should think.  Hiram

Soverhill, Esq., and Vulney Brown asked it quenuuns while I

_was there, and it rapped in answer to them.

I went over again on Sunday, between 1 and 2 o clock P. M.

1 went into the cellar with several others, and had them all leave

the house over our heads ; and then I ask-d, if there had been

-a man buavied in that cellar, to manifestit by rapping, or any

other noise or sign ? The moment I asked the questivns, there
was a sound like -the fallicg of a stick, about a foot long and
half an inch through, on the floor in the bed:room over our
heads. It did not seem to bound at zll ; there was but one
sound. 1 then told Stephen Smith to go right up and examine
the room, and see if he could discover the cause of the noise,—
He came back, and said that he couid, discover nothing,—that
there was no one in the room, or in that part of the house. I
then asked two more questions, and it rapped in the usval way.
We all then went up stairs, and made a thorough search around
the rooms, but could find nothing..

I then got a knife and a fork and tried to see if I canld make
the same neise by dropping them, but I could not. ~ This was
all I heard on Sunday. There is « nly one floor, or partition, or
thickness betwecen the bed-roowm and the cellar—no p'ace where
any thing could be secreted to inake the noise. -When this
noise wus heard in the bed-room, I could feel a slight tremulvus
motion or jar,

There was some digging in the cellar on Saturday night.—
They dug until they came to water, and then gave it up. The
question had been previously asked, whether it was right that
they sheuld dig on that night? and there was no rapping.—
Then, whether it was wrong ? and the rapping; was heard.—
Whether they should dig on Sunday ? -no rapping; on Monday ?
and the rapping commenced again. However, some insisted on
digg.ng at this time, and dug accordingly, but with no success.

On Monday night heard this noise again, and asked the :ame
questions I did before, and got the same answers. - Thxs is the
last time that I have heard the rapping,
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" Lcaninno way account for this gingular ‘noise, whlch 1 and
otherd have heard. It is a mystery to me, which I am wholly
unable to solve. I am willing to testify under oath that1 did
not make the noises or rapping which I and others heard; that I
do not know of any person who did or could have made them;
that I have snent considerable time since then, in order to sat-
isfy myself as to the cause of it; but cannot account for it on
any other ground than it is supernatural. I lived in the same
house about seven years ago, and at that time never heard an~
noise of the kind in or about the premises. I have understood
from Johnson and others, who had lived there before ——
“moved there, that there were no such sounds heard
there while they occupied the house. I never believed in haun-
ted houses, or heard or saw any thing but what I could account
for before ; but this I cannot account for as yet. .

April 12,1848, (Signed,) WM. DUESLER.

Statement of Walter Scolten.

I live in the town of Arcadia, about a mile and a half from
the residence of Mr. Fox. I am acquainted with Mr. I!. and
famnily, and believe them to be respectable and upright people.
The first time I heard of any thing mysterious or unaccounta-
ble having oc:urred there, was 2 weck ago last Sunday, at
about 10 o’clock A. M. I went down to meeting, at the school
‘house in Hydesville, abou 1 o’clock P. M. I went over to Mr.
Fox’s house, for the purpose of hearing this noise, if there was
any thing to be heard. I did’nt believe that there was any
thing that could not-be accounted for, and I went in order to
satisfy my own mind in regard to it. There wasabout a dozen
people present when I got there. They wanted me to ask it
some questions.

I Grst heard Mrs. FFox’s statement of the whole transaction.
1 then comwenced asking questions, and the knocking was
heard in answer to them. They had told me what questions
had been asked before. I first asked if it was right that its bo-
dy should be found? and it answered by three raps,~—if they
continned digging, whether they would find the body ? the rap-
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. ping was then heard in answer. We then went down cellar, as
we thought it would be stiller there and we would hear it bet-
 tery and for the purpose of seeing if the same noises could be
heard there that were in the bed room. I asked it how much
money it had in its possession when it was murdered, and to
rap the .number of *hundreds ? It rapped five times. I did not
Jknow that this questior had been asked before, but they after-
wards told me that it had, and that the same answer was always
received. I asked how many feet it was buried below the sur-
face of the ground 7 .and it rapped fen times. There wore a
great-many more questions asked, some of which were answer-
“ed and some. were not answered. " Those which were not an-
swered were reversed, and then the rapping was heard. The
. question was asked, how many children it left when it was mur-
dered ? and five raps were heard. It was then asked if its wifs

was living 7 and there was no noise ;—then, as many years as’

she was dead, rap? It rapped twice.

The noise appeared, when we were in the cellar, to coma
from the ground. Some thought it was on one side, and svme
on the other. We could hardly tell in what direction it came
from. 1t did not sound like any.noise that could be made by
rapping or striking, either on the floor or on the ground. I
have since tried to make the same noise in many different ways,
but have never succeeded in imitating it.

Stephen Smith, my wife, Mrs. Fox, Mrs. Losey, Mr. Wm.
D. Storer and two girls, were down in the cellar with me at
the time of which I have spoken. I wasin the house butabout
half-an hour, and then came right home.’

I have never heard noises there at any other time than this.
T'here had been digging in the cellar at the time I was there.—
They-had dug about two feet and a half, I should think. There
wasa good deal of water in the hole, which they said had pre-
vented them from digging any more. (Signed.)

Wednesday, April 12, 1848, WALTER SCOTTEN.
 Certificate of Mrs. Elizabeth Jewell,

1 am the wife of Davip JEWELL, and live but 2 short distance
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" from the house occupied by Mr. Fox, where ' this -mysterious

noise is heard. . I was called opon tv go over there on Friday
evening, the 31st of March last, at aboat 10 o'clock P. M.
When [ got there, Wi, Diiesler was asking questions in rela-
tion to the murder. It was asked if di ﬁ'«*rent individiwals had
comr-itted this murder, (naming separately different people who
had !.;ed in that house, also some who lived in the neighborhood;)
toa.l of which qnestions there were no answers, until it swas
asked if ——
swered immediately by rapping. The rapping was quite loud.

It was then asked again if the neighbors ha¢ injured it—to
wit : Mr. Jewell ? or Mr. Hydé? &c., but there was no noise
in answer to these questions. 1t was then asked if it was mur-
dered in this room 7 naming the bed-room, and the rapping was
heard. Where it was buried? if i1 the celllar? Rap ! rap!
How was the bady conveyed to the cellar 7 by the ontside door ?
Mo rap. Was it by the inside door, down through the butte-
ry ? and the rapping was then heard distinctly.,

Many other questions. were asked in reiation to the murder; -

the depth under the surface of the earth tl.e body was buried,—
the amont of money that was obtained by the murderer, &ec.,
and we got distinct answers in the usual way, by this knocking.
- 1 visited the place again on the next Saturday evening, April
1st, and heard the same questions asked, torether with many
athers, and got distinct answers in the usual way. [askeil the
following questions : Is Mr.

your murderer ? and it rap-

ped distinetly.  Did he murder you on a Satnrday night? No~

rapping ; on Sunday night? on Moonday night? No foise ;—
on Tuesday night? and then the raps were heard. At what
hour? was it at nine o’clock 1 ten o’clock ? eleven o’clock 7—
No rapping. Was it at twelve o’clock? Then the rapping
was distinctly heard by all in the room. Many guestions were
asied, and no answers heard ; but when the quesitons were re-
vetsed, they were answered.

T have visited the place several times since, and have heard no
unusual noise until vr:te*,’!ay, (April 13th) about nine o’clee":
A. M., Mrs. Fox inqufred if it would answer forme! and1t- =

was the man who murdered it? and it an- )

R i
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ped. - She asked how many moments it was dying when it was
murdered? there were six raps, louder 1than I ever heard it before,
How many hours the body lay in that room? Itrapped six times.
Is — sorry he committed the murder ?  Rap, rap. How
many coats did Mrs. rip to- pieces and alter over after
the murder? it rapped two? Rap a little louder ? and tne rap

*.was more distinct. Did those coats belong to the murdered

man ? there was one rap.

A great many other questions.were asked at this time, which
1 do not now rcollect, and they were all answered one way or
the other.. The rapping was more distinct at this interview,
than I ever heard it-before.

I never have bzen a believer in supcrnatural appearances on
earth, and never have seen or heard any thing before which I
couid not account for in some way or other, This T am wholly
ata losstoaccount for, unless it is a supernatual appearance. I
have been acquainted with Mr. Fox and family some time, and
cheerfully certify thatI never saw any thing in their conduct,
or heard any thing about them, that would lead me to suppose -
that they would be guil'y of carrying on any trickery in‘order
to deceive the public : on the contrary, I have always looked
upon them as honest, upright people, and good neighbors.

I knew of Mrs. , Some years agn, ripring up and col-
oring an overcoat for Mr. , and making it over again.—
She stated as a reason for so duing, that it had faded.

Shonld [ be called upon, [ would willingly testify to the truth
of the above statement. (Signed,)

April 14th, 1843, ELIZABETH JEWELL.
Certificate of Lorren Penny.

I was at Duesler’s on Friday night, the 31st of March.—
While there, I heard that strange noises had been h2ard in Mr.
Fox’s house, just across the road ; so T went over there, and
went into the house. Mr. Hyde and wife, Mr. Redfield and wife,
Mr. Duesler and wife, and several others, were there at that
time. While there, Duesler asked a good many questions about
its being murdered. After- askmg a-good many quesuens, we
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found out by the rapping that it was murdered in that hovse,—
that it was murdered cy having its throat cut with a batcher
knife, on a Tuesday night, about 12 o'cluck,—that its body was
buried in the cellar, aboat ten feet under ground. It was then
- asked whete-abouts in the cellar the body was buried 1 if un
the north side ? or on the south side, &c., but no rapping.
Then if it was buried in the center of the cellar ? and the rap-
ping commenced again. ’

Mr. Redfield went into the cellar and walked around, and the
question was asked if any person was over the place where it
was buried? Whenever Mr. Redfield was near the centér of
the cellar, the rapping. was distinctly heard ; but whenever he
moved to any different placey there was no sound. Mr. Red-
field said that he could hear the noise himself. He (Mr. D.)
then asked which way the body was carried down cellar? if
through the outside cellar door ? No rapping. " If through the
buttery, down the inside stairway ? and then the raps were
heard. It was then asked to rap the age of some of those in
the room, which it did, as they all said, correctly. The ques-
tion was then asked as to the number of children in the different
families in the neighborhood, and it rapped them right. It was
then asked to rap its own age, and 1t rapped thirty-one times,
which we all counted. ‘

A great many other questions were asked while I was there,
and answered. I have heard Wm. Duesler’s statement about
what took place on this evening, and the same 1s correct so far
asI know. I wasnot there all the time that he was.

I have no doubt but what Mr. Fox and family are honest, and
that they tell the truth about this matter. I do not think that
they or Wm. Duesler are carrying on any game to deceive the
public. It makes a great deal of trouble for Mr. Fox and his
family. 'T'hey are thronged with visitors, and broken of their
rest, &c.

I could not be deceived about this noise, for I heard it very
distinctly, and cannot in any way account for it. I think it
cannot be caused by any person in the house. The house has
been searched from top to hottom, and nothing found that could

J
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make this noise. I did not go there believing that there was
anything in it; but supposed that 1t was some trickery or decep-

. tion. 12th April, 1848. . (Signed,) LORREN PENNY.

Certificate of James Bridger.

1 was at this housc on Friday night, with many others. I
went there w th Mr. Penny. [Bridger's statement in regard to
the noises ‘or rappings and the questions to which they were
answers, was the same as. that of Mr. Penny and others.] I
cannot in any way.imagine how these noises .can be inade
by any human means. If.it had been heard but on one or two
occasions,-I should not think it such.a mystery, but should be
satisfied that some one was cutting _up some caper, in order to
alarm Mr. I"ox’s people. But now I think that this is impossi-
ble. April 12th, 1848. (Signed,) JAMES ERIDGER.

Statement of Chuuncey P. Losey.

A week ago last. Saturday night, [ was at Mr. Fox's. I
went there because I had heard that there were nvises heard
there that could not be accounted for. There were a great
many people there when I got there. I:hould think that there
was nearly four hundred in and about the house during the eve-
ning. There were a great many questions asked in relation to
its murder, and they were answered by its rapping. Mr. Dues-
ler was asking questions part of the time, and I heard the rap-
ping distinctly in answer to them.

* From what I kauw of Duesler, I should have no doubt but

-what his statements were true, cven ifI had not heard the rame

rapping in answer to the same questions of which he has spo-
ken; but he has stated the truth in his account of this affair, so
far as T know. I do not think that he had anv hant in making
these noises. T was within hearing of t' ¢ noise about an liour.
I coiuld not tell where it seemed tv be. It was unaccountable.
It sounded as if it was in diferent places at different times. If
it was any human being that made the noise, 1t must have mov-
ed around from one place to'another. I think that no human
being could have answered all the questions that were answered
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by this rapping,—the telling the ages of different pe=sons, &ec.,
&c. .Thereis no place between the room and cellar where any
thing or any body could be s ‘creted to make the noise. I should
think there were nearly one hundred who said they heard it du-
ring this, evening. They all seemed to think it wasa great
mystery, and were unable to account for it, although some did
not think there was any thing supernatural about it.
“April 12th, 1848. (Signed,) CHAUNCEY P. LOSEY.

Statement of Benjamin F. Clark.

A week ago last Sunday [ was at Mr. Fox's, with Duesler
anil Stephen Smith. 'We went into the cellar. There was no
one in the rooms above : they had been all fastened out. Some
questions were aske:l. and I heard the rapping in answer to them.
I think Mr. Duesler asked it if it was a murdered man, to mani-
fest it by a loud rapping, or some other noise or sign. At that
moment a loud noise or rap was heard over our heads. Itseem-
ed to bie about as‘lond 2 noise as woull be cazsed by dropping
a knife or furk on to the floor, only'it did not appear to bound at
all. It seemnd like one dzad blow upon the floor, and nothing
more. Smith went up stairs as quick as he could go, to see
what it was ; buat he said that he could find nothing. We all
went up then, and made a thorough search about the rooms..
There was no body in that part of the house at that time but
ourselves. We could find nothing on the fluor that conld have
made this noise. We tried tu made a similar'sound by dropping
a case knile and a stick, but could not—there would be some
bound to it. We heard sum~ other rapping at this time, and
were a little startled by what had occurred.

12th April, 1848. - (Signed.) BENJAMIN F. CLARK.

- Statement of Mrs. Elizabeth Fozx.

I live about two miles and a half from the house where thess
noisas have been heard. The first I heard about tae noise, was
a week ago last Friday. ' On Saturday I heard of it again, and
went down to the house for the purpose of seeing what it was.
Joha D. Fox, who lives in the house, is my father-in-law. I



23; -

did not go down there until Soturday evening. There were 2
. great many people there at the time. 1 heard the rapping soon
after [ got there. Wmn. Duesler was in the bed-room, asking
questions. He asked if it was. murdered in that room, and it
rapped. Italso rapped when asked if it was buried in the céllar.
He then asked if the remains were under water ? and it rapped.

Idid not stay in the roombut a few minutes. There were so

many there that they kept going out and in every few minutes,

_ 80 that they could all have a chance to hear the noise. There

were committees appointed by those. present, and stationed,
"some-in the cellar and some about the house in different places,
in order to -ascertain the cause of this rapping. 1 believe they
began to dig before I came away that night. I staid at Wm.
Duesler’s that night.

The next morning I went over to the house and went into the
bed-room and asked questions. There was no ore else present
at that time, in or about the house, but Mr. Fox and his family.
I sent one of the little girls out doors to see that there was no
one about there to make the noise. I thenasked how many chil-
dren T had ? and it rapped three. How old they were ? and it
rapped their ages,—and rapped them correctly.. Then, if it was
murdered in the bed-room and buried in the cellar ? and it rapped
as before. T then asked how many yearsit had been dead ? and
it rapped four times, and then, a'ter a short interval, one more,
If was the murderer ? and it rapped. If he would
be punished in this world ? there was no knocking. If he would
be in the world to come 7 and the knocking was heard before I
could get the words fairly out of my mouth.

Mrs. Wm. Duesler came over about this time, and went into
the room to ask some questions alone. She soun came out,
looking pale as death. She said that she bad asked a question
and it had bren answered.

People called through the day, and heard the noises untll al-
most night, when they ceased. Stephen Smith and wife and
my husband and myself, staid in the house that night. We all
slept in this bed-room, but did not hear any noise during the
night. I went home on Wednesday morning, and have not
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been down there since until' to-day. To-day (Wednesday,)
I went-into the bed-room soon after'] gnt down there, and ask-
ed a few questions and they were answered by the usual rapping.
Most of the_questions which 1 asked were the same as had been

asked before, and I got the same answers. Miss Culver was
with me most of the time, and heard the questions and answers.
T then went down and sat on the cellar stairs, and asked how
many children it had at the time of its death ? and it rapped five
times,—how many sons? Two raps,—how many daughters ?
Three,~how many of them are christians? Three,—do they
often think of you? the rapping came lond and distinct. Ithen
asked it if it could appear to me ? and it rapped,—if it world, if
Taskedit to? It did not rap.

1 then asked it to rap my age dlstmctly, and we counted twen-
ty-thiee, which is my age. I asked if there were n.ta great
many unbelievers, and those who made sport of it ?  The knock-
ing was hieard in reply. I then asked it to rap louder, and it did
so. I asked it to rap as loud as I did, and I rapped quite loud
with my band, and the sound came just as lond. It scemed as
if it was right under my feet.” They heard it rap all over the
hzuse, at this times I asked if it would answer any onc in the
house ? and it did pot rap at ‘all. T asked it many other ques-
tions,and the rapping was continued until within an hour or two.

I cannot account for these nuises in any way, nor imagine
how they could be made by any human means.

April 12th, 1848, (Signed,) ELIZABETH FOX.

1 was present to-day, at the time Mrs. Elizabeth Fox has
sp oken of as having heard these rappings, and T heard the same
sounds in answer to the questions as she has stated. 1 have
never been there before to hear the noise since the excitemcnt
first commenced. (Signed.)

April 12th, 1848, VERNELIA CULVER.

Statement of Wm. D. Storer.

I have lived in this place about five years. I first heard about
astrange noise being heard in Mr. Fox's house, on Saturday
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morning, April 1st. T did not go there until that night about 7
o'clock. Ishould think there was aver two hundred peopls there
during the evening. I went into the house and heard the noise:
it seemed to be on the floor. Mr. Duecsler was asking  ques-
tions. IHe asked ‘it to rap its age, and it rapped off thirty-one.
Then he asked if murdered it? and it rapped.—
Mr. D. had been asking questions before in regard to its baving
been murdered, &c. I was not in the room hut about 15 or 20
minutes, ' -He asked it-if the Universalist doctrine was true?
and there was no noise; then, if it was false? and it rapped three.
time. He also asked if the Methodist doctrine was true? and
it. rapped. . If it had a wife 7 Rap ! rap ! How many children?
It rapped five times. . -

I do-not recollect any other questions that were asked during
the short time that I was in the room. 1 staid there until about
10 o’cluck, and then went home. They Lad not begun to dig,
but were talking about it, when I came away.

The next day, (Sunday,) I heard the rapping in the cellar.
Walter Scotten and wife, Mr. Losey, and some others. were
there also. Mr. Scotten and wife asked the questions. There
was no one in the house above.. It was asked if ‘it had been
murdered ? and it rapped. If had done it ? and
the rapping was heard. If they shoulc find the bedy by digging?
and the knocking was heard. Mrs. Scotten asked how many
children she hal 1 and it rapped twice, which was correct.

I then told Mr. Scotten to ask it if a man’s heart must be
changed before Lie conld enter the kingdom of heaven? and it
rapped that it must. This noise appeared to be about a fuot or
18 inches under ground, when we werein the cellar : it soun-
ded something like a thumping upon the ground. We heard it
very plain on Sunday, as the house was still. -

I cannot imagine any way by which this noise could be pro-
duced by any human agency. -I have examined the premises
very carefully, and can find nothing by which these sounds could
be proluced; no cord or wire,or any thing of that kind by which
any body could produce these sounds by being at a distance.—
Thereis no chance under the floor where any thing could be se-
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crcted—no CPiling or any thing of that kind. I have never
beard the noise at any other time since.

1 have always supposed, and have no doubt but what Mr. I'o'{
and. family are candid and honest people ; ‘and I do not think that
they have any hand in carrying on any trickery’ for the purpose
of decelving this community. This disturbance has pat them
to a great deal of trouble, and they certainly can have no object
in carrying on such a deception, even.were it possible that .they
could do s0. (Signed,) WM. D. STORER.

12th April, 1848,

Statement of Marvin P. Losey.

I first heard this noise one week ago last Saturday evening.
I have heard Mr. Storer's statement above, in regard to what oc-

carred on that night, and the same is true-and: correct. I heard

the same sounds in answer to the same questions, of which he
has spoken. I went into the cellar with Carlos Hyde, George
Bridger, and Ezekiel Dailey. Mr. Duesler was-up above in the
bedroom asking questions. He told all those in the cellar but
one, to stand in one place, and then told that one (Mr. Hyde)
to step about from one place to another, which was done, and
Mr. Duesler at the same time asked the question, if there was
any one over the place where its body was buried ? This ques-
tion was asked a number of times, as Mr. Hyde stepped about
from one place to another, but there was no rapping in answer
to it, until Mr. Hyde stood about in the center of the cellar,
when the question was answered by several distinct raps. We
all heard this noise or knocking. Mr. Duesler told us that Mr.
Hyde was over the place, although he could not see us, nor had
he any other means of knowing where he was than by the rap-
ping. This was tried over a number of times, and with the
same result. Mr. Duesler asked all of the questions in the same
tone of vuice, so that nothing ceculd be indicated by that. I
could nut te’l where this noise appeared to be, although it seem-
ed to be in the cellar,

T do not think it possible that this could be carried on by any
person without being detected, '

Lat S
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I heard it after this. I wasin the bedroom, with my hand on
the bedstéad. Mrs. Fox asked if murdered the
man whose budy was buried in the cellar? Tue rapping was

“very loud and plain; it seemed to jar the bedstead. I heard the
sam2 question asked by Mr. D.esler, and the same answer was
given. I have not heard this noise since that evenineg.

April 12, 1848, (Signed,) MARVIN P. LOSEY.

Statement of David S. Foz.

I live abont.two miles from the house where these strange
noises have been heard. My father, John Fox, lives in this
house, and las lived here some five or six mouths. I have liv-
ed :n this place about ten years, The first that I heard about
these noises, was a weck ago last Friday. Whea they told
me about it, T told them that il they searched, I guessed they
would find 2 caunse for it, asit must be something about the
house. Tdid not hear any noises at this time; but after staying
there a short time, went home.

The next morning they sent for me, and told me that the-
noises had aga'n been heard. T went down there on Sarurday
evening, and heard questions asked by different indiyiduals, and
they were answered by rapping. They were not 2ll answered.
It was asked if it was murdered on the different nights of the
week 7 and there was no answer until it was asked if it was
murlered on a Tuesday night ? when it was answered in the
usual way, by rapping. [t was then ascertained in the same
way, that it was murdered about 12 o’clock at night, on that
night, by having its throat cut with a butcher kmife. Tt was
then asked to rap the number of years old it was at the time of
its murder, an: it rapped thirty-one times, so distinctly that
we could all count the number of sounds.

There was a large collection of people - there at this time,
many more than could get into the house. Commitiees were
chosen and placed in different parts of the house in order to see
that there was no deceptinn practiced by any one. These com-
mittees were composed of the nelcrhburs and people who live
about here. :
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Questions were arked as.to-.who committed the murder.—

[Before this it had answered that it ‘'was the spirit of a, murdered

man.] Tt wasasked if Mr. Duaesler had committed the murder?
and there was no knocking. - Then it was asked if Mr. Feasler
was the ;one ? Mr. Johsson ? and several others, who had for-
merly live in the house, and there was no answer given. The
question was_then asked if Mr, —— was the one who
had murdered it ? The rapping was then heard several times.
It was then asked if. Mr. was alone with him when the
murder was cowmitted ? and it rapped that he was. It was
then asked if Mrs, ——— knew it at the tiue? and there was
no noise.; if she was ignorant of it ? the knocking was heard,—
if it was murdered for money ? then it knocked,—thea if for
one hundred 1—three hundred ?—four hundred 7. No rapping,
five hundred ? and it vapped that it was. It then rapped that it
was a married man, and it had five children at the time it -was
murdered. This was in answer to queatmns that were asked
it by thnse present.

I understood that nearly the same questions were aqked
the night befure, and the samne answers obtained. The ques-
tions were put in every shape, and there was ne contradiction
at any time, so that I am satisfied that these noises could not be
produced by chance. The questions were asked and answered
in such a manner, that I do not believe it pussible that any hu-
man being could be engaged in it, and carry en the deception so
long without being found out.

There is no place about ‘the honse in which any person

could be secreted so as to proluce these sounds. There is
ounly one floor betwean this bel-rooin anl the cellar. The
question was then askad in regard to the place in which it was
buriel in the cellar. Tt was asked success'vely if it was buaried
in each corner, and there was no answer. It was then asked
if it was buriel in the center? and it rapped that it was. Mr,
Carlos Hyde was in the cellar, and he walked about, anl the

question was repeated if he was over the place where the body -

vas buried? and there was no rapping, only when he stood over

the center of the cellar ; no one out of the cellar could see -
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himi, 80 as to know where he was standing at' this time. - When-
ever he stood near the center of the cellar, it rapped, so that
those in the cellar as well as in the room above.could hear it.”

I staid in the house until abunt one o’cluck in the morning,
but the noise tiad stopped before I left. It stoppeit a little be-
fore twelve o’clock. ~ After some of the crowJ had left, some of
the people went to digging inthecell r. They dug about three
feet deep, when the water cane in so fast that they bad to stop.
I do not know that I have heard the noize since until to- -day.,—
It has been rapping to- -day in answer to a. good many ques-
tions, and gave the same answers that it has before.

I was here on Monday the  3d of April, and we commenced
digging again in the ceilar and bailing out the water, but we
found it i.npossible to make much headway. On Tuesday eve-
ning they began digging again. I gota pump, and we took up
the floor and put.iv in the hole,and began to pump and bail out the
" water at the same time. We could not lower the water much,
and had to give it up. The water is in the hole, although it is

lowering gradually.

I thought (rom there being so many respectable people pres-
ent, and they having heard the same sounds that I did, that there
must be something in it. Inever believed in haunted houses, or
any thing of that kind. Ihave heard of such things, but never saw
or heard any thing but what I could account for, on reasonable
grounds. [cannotaccount for this noise as being produced by any
human agency. Tam perfectly willing to take my oath as to the

‘truth of the statements which I have here made, if it is thought
necessary. (Signed,)

Tuesday, April 11th, 1848, DAVID 8. FOX.

Bl

Statement of Mrs. Mary Redfield.

- I amacquainted with BMr. Fox and family, who live in the house
where these strange noises are heard. I was called upon by Mr.
Fox, on the evening of the last day of March, about 8 o’clock, to go
to his house to hear this mysterious noise, and having previously heard
from the childten that they had heard strange noises in the night, I
went over. I went with a good deal of levity, saying that I would
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go over and have a spree with it, if it was a-.ghost. Mrs. Fox met me
at the bed-room door, and she and the girls appeared to be much agita-

“ted. . They looked very pule. Mrs. F. saidy *¢ Mrs. Redfield, what

shall we do? we have heard this noise for some tim=, and now it an-
swers all of our questions, and we cannot accouat for it.”” She want-
ed me to sit down on the bed by her side, and then she began to ask
questions. ¢ Now count five?’* It did so' distinctly by rapping.
¢« Count fifteen;”’ and it rapped fifteen times. She then asked it to
rap my age, and it rapped thirty-three times, so that we all connted it.
This is my age. ¢ If you are an injured spirit manifest it by three

Taps,” 1t rapped three times. By this time I became much interest-

ed—t"e girls were much frightened. T told them not to be afraid—
that if it was a revelation from the spirit world, it was not to injure
them. One of them then said, with much feeling, ¢¢ we,are innocent
—how good it is to have a clear conscience.?’ .

Many other questions were then asked, relative to the murdered
man,—his family,—the time of the murder,—who the murderer was,—
the amount of money for which he was murdered —the place where
the boly was buried:—and. we got distinct answers by the usual raps,
as stated by Mrs. Fox, Mr. Duesler, and others.

A great many other questions wera asksd, some of which were an-
swered and some were not. Upon reversing thosz to which there were
no answers, and the rapping was heard, but if we reversed those which
were answered, there would be no answers at all. Many other neigh-
bors were called in, and heard the mysterious noise with a grear deal
of astonishment. They all said they could not account for it.

I visited the house again day before yesterday, (Wedneslay,) about
7 o’clock F. M. I went into the bed-room with others, an: knelt
down upon the floor by the side of the bed, and asked if there wasa

- heaver to obtain 7 and got turee raps.—is my child Mary in heaven ?

T i nv wking was heard in answer. Thesz questions, and others,
wetwasged while in the attitude of prayer to the Supreme Being for a
revelation of these mysterious noises to me. . Another lady in the room
remarked that she was afraid. T told her that God woull protect her,
and at that moment we heard several distinet 7aps. Many questions
were asked,some of which were answerad,and some were not. I asked
it if it was a spirit from God? and it rapped,—are the spirits of our
departed friends now around us? The rapping was heard.

I never have been a believer in supernatural appearances en earth,
snd have pever heard any wnnatural. noises previous to. this, which I
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could not accountfor. But I eannot in any way imagine how thisis
produced by any human means. ‘1 have been acquainted with Mr.

_John Foxand family for a nujpber of years, aul have always looked

upon them as honest and upright people; and do not think that they
have any band in pro:lucing this strange noise. %

Should I ever he.called upon to testify to the truthfulness of the
above statement, [ shall do so cheerfully. (Signed,)

14th April, 1848. MARY REDFIELD.

Thus this strange affair as yet remains, . It seems to be beyond the
power of human ingenuity to solve the thrilling mystery that sutrounds
it. These certificates and statements will satisfy any man who has
sufficient confidence in his fellows to trust them in the ordinary af-
fairs of business, that somsthing ‘at least has occurred in that quiet
little ville, which as ynt baffles all investigation. There is no one, ‘e
trust, so uncharitable as to say that all these honest and intelligent
people, whose statements we have given, have combined together, in
the nineteenth century and in this enlightened land, for the purpose of
producing the great exc'tement which now prevails. They certainly
could have no object to do so; they have no unity of interests that’
will bz advanced by any such combination ; for the age when ghastly
appeiran -es and supernatural noisss were made the instruments in the
hands of the more intelligent, of extortion and tyranny over the more
ignorant and superstitious, has passed away.

These statements, which we have given. are but a small number in
comparison with those which might have been obtained, had it been
deemed necessary,—but it was thought that they were sufficient to
satisfy even the most incredulous as to the facts set forth. Giving,
then, to them the ordinary credence which we give to the solemn as-
sertions of others, what conclusion shall we draw in regard to this

strange affair? ¢ Shall we let the world know that we believe this

to be a supernatural appearance ?°’ asks one, who cannot account for

“it on any other ground. ¢ Why, how the people will laugh at us if

wedo! ! The artillery of the press, as well as private sarcasm, we
think will prevent the present generation from adopting superstitious
notions too readily. Yet who of those who laugh and soeer, can
bound the spirit-land, or tell us its connection with the material
world? Who can tell us its limits in the vastness of space? or as-
sert that the epirits of the departed are not hovering around us,—in-

. flueneing our destiny,-although that lalueace may be wasean and vo~

- 394587



-3
felt? Even in life, we are often awed by the mysterious workings of
the human soul. . Although it be harnessed down to earth, it will now
-and then escape from jts thralldom, and as a gleam of lightning from
an evening cloud, 5 .

¢ Paints crimson beautics on msislcr cloud,
And with its light, iiluimes the starless firmament.”

So will it shiné for a short moment through the world of souls
g¢round it, and then sink back again to its prison house. If the spirit
of Swedenborg could thus ¢ shuffle off its mortal coil,’”’ and reveal the
coming of [uture events, and be cognizant of things that were taking
place ata greatdistance, and then resume. its ordinary avocation,~—why
cannot the spirits of the dead come back and reveal to us that which
would otherwise be unknown? ¢ Dead men tell no tales,’’ is a motto
with whicl: we are met at this point ;—the horrible principle that char-
acterizes the operations of the buccaneers zpon: the ocean !—and yet,
ask Gibbs, and Gilbert, and Swansey, who expiated their murderous
career upon the scaflold, if the spirits of their victims did not haunt

" them by day and night, causing them to betray the strongest evidences

" of their guilt that could be produced, and that which was most satis-
factory to those on whom their.[ate depended. They would repeat to
you, with their last breath, the warning words of Macbeth, as the
ghost of Banquo appeared to him,—

¢ The times hive been

That, when the brains were out, the man would die,
And then an end ;—but now, thcy rige again,

With twenty mortal murders on their crowns,

An | push us from our seats, ‘I'his is inore sirange
Than such a murder! !

Bat the statements which we have given are not all we have, which
throw lizht upon this affuir; and such a light as will satisfy every one that
there is reasonable ground for this excitement, and for the belief that
thisapj earance is in reality the spirit of a victim to man’s murderous
avarice, hoveung about the spot where its ¢ vital chord was rudcly dis-
engaged;’? for the purpose of revealing to mankind its untimely fate ;
-and above all, for the purpose of teaching to those who are shedders
of human blood, that ¢ mnrder will out.””> These statements are from
sources which are to be relied upon, and come from those who could
have no earthly motive in fabricating them :

Statement of Mrs. Hannah Weekman.

‘We have lived in this place abour-five months. I have heard about
these mysterious neises that have been heard in. the house pow ocer-

P
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pied by Mr. Fox. We used to live in the same house; we lived‘theré
ubout a year and a half, and moved from there here. Abouta year
ugo, while we were living there, we heard some one, as we'supposed,
rapping en the outside door. Ihadjust got into bed, but my husband
‘had not. Hle went to the door and opened it5and said thet there was
no one there ; and he came back and was about getting into bed, when
we heard the rapping upon the door again. e then went to the door
and opened it, and said that he could see no one although he stepped
out alittle ‘ways. He then came back and got into bed. He was'
quite angry : he thought *twas some of the neighboring boys that were
trying todistwrb.us, and said that ¢ they might knock away, but they
would not fool him,” or something of that kind. The knocking was
licard again, and afier a while he got up and went to the door and
went out. I told him not to go out doors, for perhaps somebody wan-
ted to get him out and hurt him. He came back and said” he could
see nothing. We heard a good deal of noise during that night; we
could hardly tell where it was; it sounded sometimes as if some one
was walking. about in the cellar. But the house was old, and we
thought it might be a rattling of some loose boards, or something of
that kind. .

A few nights afterwards, one of our little girls who slept in the bed-
room where the noises are now heard, woke us all up by sercaming
very loud. My husband and I and our hired girl, got up immediately
{0 see what was the matter. She sat up in the bed crying and screa-
ming, and it was some time before we could find out from her what the
matter was. . She said that something had been moving around over
her head and face,—that it was cold, and she did not know what it
was. Shesaid that she felt itall over her, but she appeared to be more
alarmed at feeling it in herface. She was very much frightened.—
This was between twelve and one o’clock at night. She got up and
got into bed with us, and it was a long time before she could go "to
sleep. . It was scveral days before we could get her to sleep in that
foom again. She was eight years old at that time.

There was nothing else that happencd to me during the time that
sve lived there ; but my husband told me that one night he heard some
one call him by namec, somewhere about the house; he did not know
where ; but could never find out where or what it was. I was notat
home on that night. I was away setting up with a sick person. We
did not think the housc was haunted at thig time. R

T do not believe in b])tll}]m, orany thing.of that kind ; but I hmdly

3



know' what to say about it now ;—so many have heard the noise that
it-seems as if something must be the matter. (Signed,)
Tuesday, 11th April, 1848. HANNAILF WEEKMAN.

- Statememt of Michael Weekman.

1 am ihe husband of Hasnau Werxmar, Weused to livelin the
liouse now occupied by Mr. Fox, in which they say strange noises are
heard. We lived there about a year and a’half. ©One” evening, about
bed time, I heard a rapping. I supposed it was gomie ohe knoiking at
the door, who wanted to come in. I did not bid him come in, as 1
‘usually do, but went to the door. ‘I did not'find any one there ; but
went back, and just as I was getting into bed, I heard the rapping a-
gain, and opened the door quick, but could see no one there. I step_
ped out a step or two, but could see no one about there. "I then went
back and got into bed. I thouglit somebody was making game of me.
After a few minutes [ heard the knocking again, and alter waiting a
spell and still hearing it, I got up and went to the door. This time 1
went clear out and looked around the house, but could fiad no oie.
then stepped back and {shut the door, and hell on'to thelatcl ; and
thought if there was any one there, I would catch them atit. In a
minute or two I heard the rapping again. My hand was on the door,
and the knocking appeared to be on the door. I could feel it' jar with
theraps. T instantly opened the door and sprang out, but there was
1o one insight: "1 then went round the housz again, bui could find no
one as before. My wife told me I had better not go out doors, as,it
might be that some one wanted to hurt me. I did not know what to
think of it, it seemed so strange and unaccountable.

The second time that we were disturbed in any way was, by ourlit-
tle girl who slept in the bed-room. She wolz us up oae night by her
screaming. [EFis statement in regard to tiis is the same as that of
Mrs. Weekman; given above.] Oune night after this, about midnight,
1'was awake, and heard my name called. It sounded as if it was on
he south side of the room. I set up in bed and listened, bat did not
hear it again. I did not get-out of bed, but waited to see if it would
be repeated. My wife was rot at home that night. I told her of it
afterwards, and she said she guessed that I bad Dbeen dreaming. My
wife used to be frightencd quite often by hearing strange noises in and
about the house.

I have heard so much from men in whom I place confidence about
these noises that are now heard, that, taken in counection with. what
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Y'heard, 1 c'mnot acconnt for it, unless it is nsup°rnatursﬂ _appearance.
Tamw illing to make affidavit to the above statement ifnecessary.
1Ith Apnl 1848, 'MICHAEL VVEEKMAN

Statement of Mrs. Janz C. Lape.

I am the wife of Flenky Lavr, and am 19 years old. I lived with
Mr, Weskman’s folks, about a year and a half ago, when he occupied
the house where Mr. Fox now lives. 1 staid -there until the spring
of *47. One day, dbout two o’clock P. M., while I was doing my
work in the kitchen, T saw a man in the bed-room joining the kitch-
cu. The bed-room door was open, and I saw the man distinctly. [ was
much [rightened. I had been in the kitchen some time at worlk, and
knew that no one had gone into that room. There was only one door
to'the bed-room, and that opened into the kitchen. The man stood’
facing me when I saw him. IIe did not speak, nor did I hear any
noise at any time, like a persoa walking or moving about in the room.
ITe had on grey pants, biack frock coat and black cap. He was about
middling size, I should think. I knew of no person in that vicinity

wlio wore a similar dress. Mrs. Weekman was in another part of the ™

house at this time I was very much frightened andleft the room,
and when I returned with Mrs. W. there was no person there. She
thought that it was some one who had been trying to frighten me; but
we were never able to ascertain who or what it was. I have alway
thought, and still do think, that that was a supernatural appearance.”
T never had been a believer in such things until I saw this. .

Should [ ever be called upon to testify to the truthfulness of the
above statement, I would do so cheerfully. (Signed,)

Sodus, 17th April, 1848. JANE C. LAPE.
Statement of Miss Lucretia Pulver.

1 live about a mile and a half north of the house eccupied by Mr.
Fux, in whicl it is said that noises are heard. [ have always lived in
this vicinity. I have not heard these noise since they have produced
this excitement. lam now 19 yearsold. Ilived in thishouse all one
winter, in the family of Mr. I worked for them part of the
time, and part of-the time I hoarded there and went to school. I lived
there about three months. During the latter part of the time that,-f’
was theres I heard this knocking frequently, in the bed-room, under
the foot of the bed. I heard it a number of nights, as I slept in the
bed-room all of the time I staid there.
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One night I thought I heard a man walking in the buttery. This
buttery is near the hed-room, with a stairway between them.  Miss
Aurelia Losey staid with me en that night ; she also heard the noise,
and we were both much frightencd, and got up and fastened down the
windows and fastencd the door. It sounded as if the pcrson walked
through the buttery, down céllar, and part way across the cellar bot-
tom, and there the noise ceased. There was no one else in the house
at this time, except my little brother, who was aslecp in the same
room with us. This was abewt 12 0’clock, I should think. We did
not go to bed until after 11, and had not been asleep when we heard
thenoise. Mr. and Mrs. —— had gone to Lock Berlin, to be gone
until the next day. . .

‘We did’nt hear any thing more that night. We were a good deal
alarmed, but after a while got over it. We thought it might be Mr
Fom *——:—-, because I heard Mrs. say that she had often heard
somebody around the house, and that she believed it was this man, for
that she thought he would steal. I heard nothing more afier this but
the rapping, which continued as before.

One evening about a week after this, Mrs. —— sent me down cel-

lar to shut the outside door. In going across ihe cellar, 1 fell down

near the center of it. It appeared to be uneven and loose in this place.
After I got up stairs, Mrs. asked me what I screamed for, and I
#®old her; shelaughed at me for being frightened, and said that it was
‘only where the rats had been at work in the ground. A few days af-
ter this, Mr. —— carried a lot of dirt into the cellar just at night, and

was at work there some time, Mrs —— told me that he was filling~

up the rat holes.

A few days before the time when I first heard these noises, or any
thing of this kind had ever occurrer, a foot pedler called there, about
two o’clock in the afternoon. Mius. told me that Mr. tho't
they should not want to hire me any more, and that Tmight go Lome,
but that if they wanted me any more, they would send for me. - Mrs.
—— was going to Lock Berlin to stay that night. 1 wanted to buy
some things of the pedler, but had no moncy with me, and he said he
would call at our house the next morning and sell them tome. I nev-
er saw him after this. About three days after this, they sent for me
to come back and board with them and go to school. I accordingly
came back, and went to school about a. weck ; when she wanted I
should stay out of school and do the housework, as she had gota
couple of couts to fix over for her husband. She said that they were
» E
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rather. too large for him, and out of lnsluon, and shc must ultcr them.
These coats were ripped to picces-when I saw them.

Tshould think thi is pedler, of whom I have spoken, was about 30
vears old: I heard him conversing with Mus. about his: family :
he told how many children he had, in answer to her inquiries. I do
- ot recollect now how many he said he liad. Mrs. —— told me that
he was an old acqueintance of theirs; that she had seen him seveml
times before.

A short time after this Mrs. —— gave me a thimble, which she said
she had bought of this pedler and paid him fifty cents for. About
ihree months after this timeT visited her, and she said that this pedler
had been there again, and she showed me another thimble which she
said she had bought of him. She said that he had cheated her ; that
he sold it to her for pure silver, but that it was only. German silver.
She also showed me some other things, which she said she had bought
of him.

1did not know what to think of those noises which I heard. I did
not know but whac it might be rats, as Mrs. said. I did’nt. think
it was anything supernatural at the time--their dog would sit-under the
bed room window, sometimes most all night, and howl ; and this made
me think that thers was somebody about there that wanted to steal.
Mr. and Mrs™ appeared to be very good folks, only they were rath-
er quick tempered. I never had any difficulty with them during the
time that I staid there. -

This pedler carried a trunk,—and a basket, I think, with vials of
cssence init. e wore a black frock coat, and light colored pants.

L am willing to swear to the above statement, if it is necessary.
(Signed,) LUCRETIA PULVER.

April 11th, 1848.

Statement of Mrs. Anna Pulver:

1 was acquainted with Mr. and Mrs. I used to call on them
frequently. My warping bars were in their chamber, and I used to go
there to do my work. One morning when I went there, Mrs. ——
told me that she felt very bad; that she had not slept much of any the
night before. When I asked her what the matter was ? she said that
she did not know but what it was the fidgets;—but that she thought
that she heard somebody walking about, from one room to another, and
that she had Mr. —— get up and fasten the windowsdown. She said
that she felt more safe after that. I asked her what she thought it
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‘wag? and she said that it mwstbe the rats, she thought. I heard her
speak about hearing noises altpr that, which she could not account for.

(Signed,) ANNA PULVER.
April 11th, 1843. )

‘We, the undersigned, do hereby certify, that during the summer of

244 we lived near the house now occupied by Mr. Fox ; that it was

then occupied by —— ; that during. that swnmer the water
in that well was very oJensive 'md bad. . We further certify that said

well 15 within thirty feet of lhe center of the cellar under said house.
. NORMAN AYRES,
Aurcadia, April 18th, 1848. JOHN IRISII.

“The fp‘ilowing certilicate was published and circulated in that com-
1nunity, about a week after the first revelations were made. We re-
publish it for the benefit of the man who has unfortunately bécome the
subject of suspicion. Men should be careful how, on llk&solc 1espon-
sibility of an unacconntable rapping, they pass their _,ndgment upon
others. It is time cnough to condemn, when there is no longer gronnd
to.doubt. Let public opinion await.the result of -the investigations
f0w going on.  Others than thos¢ whose names are upon this cer-
iificate, are ready t join in the following recommendation. This cer-
tificate is signed by many who have heard the rappings in answer to

the questions, as set forth in the foregoing statements:

TO WHOM 1T CONCERNS.

- ‘We, the undersigned, hereby certify, that we have been acquainted

svith JOHN C. BELL, of the town of Lyons, in the county of Wayne, !

dor the last five years, or thereabouts,—that we were acquainted with
said Bell when he lived in the town of Arcadia, about two years ago,
,and that we have ever thought him, and still think him « man of hon-
est and upright character, incapable of committing crime; and that
during his residence in Arcadia aforesaid. we never knew anything
against his character, or heard any one speak ill of him; nor do we
believe that hic'is a man that would do any injury to his neighbor, or




“mty one clse, intentionally:  And having hieard foolish “and supersti~

tious reports against Iy, we cheerfully givc our names to the above

certilicate.
“Luther Sauford,
William Parker,
Andrew Traver,
Ruth Sanford,
Hiram Kuapp,

Samucl B. Powers,

Charles Hudson,
Wn T Huadson; .
avid Vanhooscn,
Joln M Power,
David Jewell,

John R I'Iy;le,

H Vanhoosen,
Worman Ayres,

. Il Vanhoosen, Jr.
- Blizaheth Jewell,
-Jolm H Bishop,

L R Ioughton,
Asaac B White,

Humphrey Sherman,

Nathan Drake,
William Drake,

Mrs A W ][ de
.. Miss Marv B nghells,.
Mlss Martha Ayles,
I Stebbins,
Andrew Vi mderhoof,
Henry Miller,
D J Iughson,
Alfred Mayer,
James Whitney,
J A Burrows,
C C Hyde,
James Thompson, -
Edwin Ayres,
Charlotte Ayres,
Arlemas W Hyde,
John Power,
Iarvey C Hyde,
Wm D Storer,
George Galloway,
Caleb P Tibbits,
James B lelnls,
l M Everts,

Dated Arcadia, Wayne Co:, N, Y., April 5, 1848.

These are the substance of the astounding developments that have’

recently come Lo light in that neighbothood. Taken in connectiow
with the unaccountable revelations that have been made by this mys-
terious rapping, who can longer doubt the supemalural origin of this
noise 7’

Upon the perusal of thesz statements many, ¢ wisz in their own
conceit,” will say that ¢ If they could visit the place and hear these
knockings, they would soonsdiscover the cause of them.” Ilundreds
have been there, firm in the same faith ; have first carefully examined

the premises ; have gone into the ghostly presence, still incredulous:
and disposed to treat the affair with levity; haveheld converse with the”

unknown one, until the cold sweat cozing [rom every pore has coursed
down their limbs, and they have been compelled to acknowledge

that they felt themselves in the presence of one from the spirit-coun~’

try.
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But let those who are 50 incredulous as .to disbeljeve these statd-
nients; remembér that the laws which govern the spiritual world, are
iot thosg which were taoght them in their school-boy days, us ru-
ling the physical ;—that the weapons of ridicule and disbeliel with
which they meet these statements, and the belief which they must
produce in candid riinds, are the same as these used by Hume and
Voltaire against the divine origin of the miracles recorded in the New
Testament. Their ridicule and reasoning islike that of the king of Siam
who caused the Siberian traveller to'be impaled for saying that ¢“thc wa-
ters of his own country were sometimes so hardencd by the cold that
man and beast could pass over them.” They will not believe any
thing which caniiot be tested by theif own seases ; and even then they
had rather allow that they had been duped through human agency than
admit that they have been convineed, against their former disbeliel in
supernatural appearances.

Many have been accused of cairying on this mysterious affair, mere-
1y for their own amusement, and many like ourselves have visited the
place in the full belief that they would be able to detect the imposition.
‘ But they have all returned no wiser than they went. ¢
} Time will probably determine whether this be a visitation from the
spiritual-world or nots Whatever may be the result, we now léave
the cause in the hands ot the public; like a member of the legdl pro-
L3 fession, when resting his case with the jury,—we are willing to abide
by its decision—reserving the privilege however of czeepting to its
judgment if against us. :

i $50 REWARD!

The subscriber hereby pledges himself to pay the above mentioned
sum to any person or persons who will satisfy him in any way, that
this mysterious appearance or rapping is, and las been during all the
; time that it has been heard, the work of any uman being.¥. They
must in‘orm him by what mean5 it has been carried on, and who the
individual is that has done it ;—all of which he will pledge himself to
4 iseep a profound secret, if requested. Upon any person complying
svith the above, they shall receive the said reward of $50.

‘E. E. LEWIS, Publisher.

Canandaigua, April 20th, 1848.
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